NC State Student Media Board of Directors January 2019 meeting minutes

Tuesday, January 8, 2019 • 7 p.m. Room 3222 Talley Student Union

Members present: Dean Phillips, Arianna Hinton, Sam McRee, Marie Smith, Robbie Williams, Tyler Dukes, Patrick Neal, Katie Tart, Xenna Smith, Keilah Davis, Jonathan Carter, Jules Conlon, Mersina Boynton

Staff and others present: Martha Collins, Ellen Meder, Jamie Lynn Gilbert

Absent: Tania Allen, Adam Skrecz, Lilly Neal, Zanna Swann

CALL TO ORDER, APPOINTMENT OF RECORDING SECRETARY, ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

Patrick Neal called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. in the absence of board chair Adam Skrecz, and Mersina Boynton volunteered to serve as recording secretary. Patrick noted that board vicechair Darian Blakey had graduated in December. That being the case, he opened the floor for nominations for the post, and Xenna Smith offered to serve. There being no other nominations, Dean Phillips moved to close the nominations, with Tyler Dukes seconding the motion. The board unanimously approved Xenna's appointment as vice-chair, and she immediately assumed control of the meeting.

APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER MEETING NOTES

Xenna moved that the notes from the Nov. 13, 2018 be approved. Tyler seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

JANUARY BUDGET UPDATE

Jamie Lynn Gilbert gave the January budget update, noting that it represented the halfway point in the year. She noted the following:

- Overall payroll is on target at 45 percent.
- Agromeck had not yet received word about its advertising revenue from the outside vendor who sells for the yearbook, so that revenue is not reflected in the January budget update. Payroll for the yearbook is on target at 45 percent.
- The Nubian hasn't booked any additional income since the last budget report, though at 89 percent, it is still looking good for the year. Payroll at the Nubian is on target at 45 percent.
- Technician is at 53% of its income goal for the year, which is excellent. Payroll is at 55 percent, a bit above where it should be, but Jamie said it was not a matter of serious concern at this point in the year. She also noted that travel had decreased by \$500 in December, apparently from an extra room charge getting reversed.
- At WKNC, Jamie noted that payroll is looking good at 46 percent. She also noted that the station would go slightly over budget in fixed charges due to unforeseen expenses related to the rollout of the HD-2 channel, but she also noted that the overage would likely be offset by underspending on travel.
- In General Administration, Jamie said Student Media had booked about \$1,000 in revenue from photo booth rentals. Otherwise, she said, expenditures looked to be in line with expectations.

WKNC HD-2 UPDATE

Jamie said that WKNC HD-2 was up and running, though at the moment it was playing the same programming as the HD-1 channel, making it something of a "soft launch." She said that the station would begin opening it to DJs once WKNC's consulting engineer reconfigured the system to allow different programming than HD-1. Once that happened, Jamie said the schedules of WKNC HD-1 and HD-2 would essentially be flipped – HD-1 would play indie rock during the day and chainsaw/hip-hop/electronic music at night, and HD-2 would play chainsaw/hip-hop/electronic music during the day and indie rock at night.

CALL FOR LEADERS AND ADVISORY BOARD APPOINTMENTS

Patrick said he sent out calls for 2019-2020 leaders shortly before Winter Break and that copies of the call for leaders and a memo concerning applications were included in the meeting package. He reminded the student leaders that applicants who had below a 2.5 GPA and/or had active actions against them at the Office of Student Conduct would not be eligible to serve as organization heads. He urged them to remind potential applicants of those points, as non-compliant applicants created an awkward situation for everyone involved.

In response to a question from Jonathan Carter, Patrick said that he was in possession of many years' worth of past applications and that they were available for review. Some discussion followed as to whether it was appropriate for current leaders to share their application packages from last year with this year's applicants. Martha Collins said that in the past, she had understood that current leaders shouldn't share their application packages with those they supervise now, but both Jamie and Ellen Meder said they didn't see any issue with the practice and encouraged their leaders to share the packages if they wished. In the end, Patrick suggested that the question be left up to the organizations' individual discretion.

Patrick said that the full board would not have a regularly scheduled February meeting to allow the four advisory boards to meet and interview candidates. With that in mind, he distributed a list of current advisory board members and full board members who were not yet assigned to an advisory board. (That list is attached and made part of these minutes by reference.) Marie Smith said that she would serve on the Business Office Advisory Board and Arianna Hinton agreed to serve on the Annual Publications Advisory Board. Patrick said he would reach out to Adam to see which board he would like to be a part of.

WINDHOVER/DOUG'S OFFICE

Patrick said IT Manager Doug Flowers would soon move out of his space in the Student Business Office to Watauga Hall, and that Windhover would be moving into that space. He said a technician from the DASA Tech team would be moving into Windhover's old office. Patrick said Doug would continue to serve as Student Media's Strategic Lead for technology and would still be on call for Student Media's specialized technical needs like the radio station and the photo box. Otherwise, he said students and staff should still submit standard desktop support request via DASA Tech's help desk email address.

SCIENCE JOURNALISM EXPLORATORY COMMITTEE

Patrick said that for some months he had been contemplating a student science journalism fellowship program housed in Student Media. He said that given that NC State was a STEM school, and that most of the school's resources were devoted to the sciences and engineering, it seemed training student journalists to explain that research and its societal implications was a natural fit for the program - especially since no other school in the Southeast has a program exactly like the one being considered. To explore the idea further, Patrick said he had convened a small exploratory committee of faculty, staff and students; membership on the committee includes board member Tyler Dukes, Nubian editor Keilah Davis, Marissa Jerden from WKNC, Jean Goodwin from Communications, Cat Warren from English, Chris Ashwell from Undergraduate Student Research and Julie Casani from Student Health. He said the group had met once on Nov. 13 to discuss the program generally, and that notes from that meeting were included in the board's meeting packet. Patrick said the group had outlined some ambitious plans, and that he didn't know if Student Media would be able to implement all of those ideas, but he said he was seeking to identify what an "ideal" program would look like and then proceed from that point. He said the exploratory group was set to meet again on Jan. 25 at 3:30 p.m. to focus on exactly what a "program year" would entail, and he encouraged any board members or student staff members who were interested to attend if they wished.

Ellen Meder asked where work produced as part of the fellowship program would be published. Patrick and Tyler said that pitching and selling pieces was a central topic of conversation at the Nov. 13 meeting. They told Ellen that the group had primarily discussed pitches geared toward larger, national outlets, but Patrick acknowledged that not giving the outlets at Student Media a right of first refusal did seem counter-intuitive; Tyler said he could see both on-campus and offcampus publications publishing work produced as part of the initiative.

ARCHIVE ROOM PROJECT UPDATE

Patrick said he had reached out to the firm renovating the archive room, and that he knew that it had been assigned a project manager and a project number, but he hadn't heard a specific date for the project. He asked the student leaders to bear with him a bit longer with regard to storing archive room materials until the work was completed.

OPEN HOUSE

Patrick reminded the students gathered of Student Media's spring open house, which was to be held the day after the meeting (Wednesday, Jan. 9) at the organizations' offices from 4-6 p.m. He said that date was chosen in part to dovetail with WKNC's interest meeting, which would follow the Open House at 6 p.m. He reminded everyone that the beginning of the spring semester was Student Media's second-most-important recruitment period of the year, and he asked everyone to ensure that their offices were clean and ready for visitors, and that outlet staff be on hand to welcome potential members and answer any questions they have.

REPORT ADDENDA

Katie Tart said Agromeck's book sales had increased to 47 books sold so far, or about \$3,600. She said 145 more books had been sold as part of Agromeck's partnership with Balfour's ring division.

ADJOURN

There being no need for an executive session, Dean moved to adjourn, with Tyler seconding the motion, which passed unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 7:42 p.m.

NC State Student Media advisory boards membership and prospective members as of Jan. 8, 2019

Annual Publications

Liz Moomey Alanna Howard Lilly Neal Tania Allen Katie Tart Xenna Smith Martha Collins

Broadcast

Joe Ovies Kelly McCullen Kate VanVorst Dean Phillips Sam McRee Haven Penn Jules Conlon Jamie Lynn Gilbert

Business Office

Robbie Williams Kellie Brys LeBlanc Chanon Smith Amy Callahan Mark Tate Zanna Swann

Newspapers

Josh Hyatt Cory Smith Nancy Wykle Ben McNeely Tyler Dukes Toni Thorpe Paul Isom Megan Ellisor Jonathan Carter Keilah Davis Ellen Meder

Unassigned board members: Adam Skrzecz, Marie Smith, Arianna Hinton